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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Wew Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited {~the
Company™}, which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our epinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects
ol the matters described in the *Basis for Qualified Opinion® section of our report, the aforesaid Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and Fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31. 2020, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As explained in the note 47 of the financial statement, due to travel restrictions and impracticability to travel on
account of COVID-19 as at March 31, 2020 and due to significant business activities subsequent to year-end, the
management could not perform physical count of inventory as at March 31, 2020 through o the date of approval of
these financial statements. Accordingly, we were not able to observe the physical count of inventory, therefore, we
were unable to verify the existence/condition of inventories of Rs. 74.00 million raw material, Rs. 294.41 million
finished goods to determine adjustments that may be required to be made in the value of inventory and conseguential
effect thercol to the financial statements as at March 31, 2020,

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section [43(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further deseribed in the
*Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics® issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the pravisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe thal the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements,

Emphasis of Matter - COVID-19

We draw attention to Note 47 to the financial statement for year ended March 31, 2020, which describes the
uncertainties and the impact of COVID 19 on i) Carrying value of receivables, invemtory, Right-to Use assets-and-ii)-
Company’s ability to meet contractual obligations including delbt repayments. as assessed by the management. The
actual results may differ from such estimates depending on future developments, Our opinion is nol modified in respect
of this matter,

her Information
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board of Directors’ Report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we da not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing 3o, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, The Board of Director’s reporl is not
made available to us as at the date of this auditor's report, We have nothing 1o report in this regard,

Responsibilities of the Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Dircctors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position. financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Acl for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal finaneial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company™s ability o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 1o cease operations, or has no
realistic aliernative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also respansible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statemenis as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the hasis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

a)  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b)  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures-that-are
appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Comnpany has adequate intemnal financial controls with reference ta financial statements

in place and the operating effectiveness of such conrols.

¢}  Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

d)  Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a materizl uncertainty exists related o events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. T we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required o draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
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e)

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company 1o ceéase to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicale with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audir,

We also provide those charged with govemance with a stalement that we have complied with relevam ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related saloguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1.

{a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(0

(g}

(I}

(i)

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1™ a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

We have sought and except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, obtained
all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;

Except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph. in our opinion, proper hooks
of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books:

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our
opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015, as amended;

The matter deseribed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse
effect on the functioning of the Company;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 2020 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed
as adirector in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above:

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over fnancial reporting of the Company with
teference Lo these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 27 o this report;

According Lo the information and explanation given by the management, we report that remuneration of the
Director for the year ended March 31, 2020 is in excess of the limits applicable under section 197 of the Act,
read with Schedule V thereto, by Rs 4.69 million. We are informed by the management that it is in the process
of seeking approval of the shareholders for Rs 4.69 million in a general meeting by way of special resalution.
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() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Bepart in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according 1o the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position:

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material [oresecable losses;

iti.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Assnc?ams LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Regjst

tmber: 10I049W/E300004

pay Sahjay Bachchani
Partner
Membership Number; 400419

UDIN: 204004 19AAAACKS21 8

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Re: New Saraswati House Private Limited (‘the Company")

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(4) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets were physically verified by the management in the previous year in accordance
with the planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noted on such verification.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and accordingly,
the requirements under paragraph 3(i)c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company as part of its policy performs physical verification of inventory bi-annually in
September and March every year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable, The
management had carried out physical verification of inventory as at September 30, 2019, No
material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification. However as explained in the
note 47, the management could not perform physical verification of inventory as at March 31,
2020, therefore, we are unable to comment on discrepancies, if any, between physical and book
records as at March 31, 2020,

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loan
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provision of clause iii(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no loan,
investment guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented Lupon,

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under clause 148(1) of the Companies - Act 2013, for the
product/services of the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax. service tax, duty of custom. value added tax, poods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases. The provisions relating to excise duty are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect ol provident fund, employees® stale insurance, income-tax, setvice lax. sales-tax, duty of
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(viii)

(ix)

(%)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

A

custom. duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

{¢) According to the information and explanations given 1o us, there are no dues of income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulied in repayment of loans or borrowings 1o a financial institution or bank.
The Company does not have outstanding borrowing against government or dues to debenture
holders

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments. The Company
has utilised the monies raised by way of term loans for the purpose for which they were raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the company by the officers
and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the vear.

According to the information and explanation given by the management, we report thal
remuneration of the Director for the year ended March 31, 2020 is in excess of the limits applicable
under section 197 of the Act, read with Schedule V thereto. by Rs 4.69 million. We are informed
by the management that it is in the process of seeking approval of the shareholders for Rs 4.69
million in a general meeting by way of special resolution.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefare, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According 1o the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and
the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards, The provisions of sec 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable 1o the
Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an averall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement-of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence. reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

According 1o the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to
in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013,
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(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Assheiates LLP

driner
Membership Number: 400419

UDIN: 204004 19AAAACKS218

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2020
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NEW SARASWATI HOUSE (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Repart on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of New Saraswati House (India) Private
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2020, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemnal financial controls that were aperating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s palicies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Aunditor’s Responsibility

Uur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finaneial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10)) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Thase
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operaled effectively in
all material respects.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement. including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion on the intermal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statemenis

A company's internal financial control over linancial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that { 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide
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reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary Lo permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use. or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a marerial effeet on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
mternal financial controls over financial reparting with reference to these financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit. the following material weakness
have been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s intemal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements as at March 31, 2020

a)  Asexplained in the note 47 The Company, could not perform physical verification of inventory at the year end,
due to which we are unable to comment on operative ineffectiveness of internal controls in relation to physical
verification of inventory and reconciliation of physically inventory with the inventory records, which may
potentially result in material misstatement of inventory values in the books ol account.

A “material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies. in internal financial contral over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, maintained adequate internal financial contrals over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements as ol March 31, 2020. based on the internal contral
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conirols Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and except for the possible effects of the material weakness
described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as of
March 31, 2020,
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Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, the financial statements of New Saraswati
House (India) Private Limited , which comprise the Balance Sheel as at March 31, 2020, and the related Statement
of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the vear then ended, and a summary of signiticant accounting
policies and other explanatory information. This material weakness was considered in determining the nature.
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2020 financial statements of New Saraswati
House (India) Private Limited and this report affect our report dated June 26, 2020, which expressed a qualified
opinion on those financial statements.

embership Mumber: 400419

UDIN: 2040041 9AAAACKS521R

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2020



Mew Saraswati House (Tndia) Private Limited

Balunce Sheet as at 31 March 2020
CEN: U2Z110DLIDIZPTC262320

®

¥ I muilliens)

3 MAs ak As al
ey 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Fatitahd
Nuomcurrent assels
Proguerty, plant and squipmen k] KGR 371.53
Intangible ureeis
= Goodywill da 36.73 56,73
- Orher intangible asscis A 13734 15078
Righi fo nse asseis 4B 11932 .
Capitnl work-tn-progress .44 Tl
Fivnicial assers
- Lionns s 338 1237
- {Hker financial assets a0 (LR {4 008
Deferved tax assels (o) ] 176,47
Inzomie dox assets {mel} 7 - 2097
CHbir non=curmen) asss 7 114 1. 75
Tutal non-current assees M 453732
Current nssets
Inwemorics & 3aE 4| 450798
Firsneial asscts
- Trade receivables LS [ LR R
= Loans 50 2K 17,86
- Cashi and cesh equivalens 5C KRN o2
lceme tax assers fnet) 7 2012 -
Chber crznt assets T 4,87 EALH
Total current asiels e L. Y8765
Tl assets 1.424.01 |, 544,97
Equity and Habilities
Equity
Equity share capdtal 9 2% 2%
Crher equity
- Butatned comings 151 (R&EL20) {33369
= Lreneral reserves il 390,00 Fa0.an
= Onher reserves 10 67130 471,39
Tutal cquity 20147 T27.98
Non-current liabilities
Finanetal Habilitbes
- Borrowings 1A 171.59 12719
= Trade payables 12 - A2
= Lexse Habiliey 13 10,24 -
Provisions 14 558 108
Twtal non carrent liabilities 3gs41 137.99
Curreint linbilities
Finameal falnldras
- Bawroowings I8 179.31 ITAT
- Trade payahles

Trade payables of micro ciameises and small enlerprises (refer pote 34) 12 1114 2543

Tracte payabées other than micr enlerprises and small erterpriscs 12 47541 56349
= Lease lnbality I3 15.04 -
= Cahicr finansial liabibities 13 1oy BT 4%
Proscsions 14 307 566
Oiher carrent labaliics 15 EETR] 3157
Total current Habilities 83713 ST
Total equity and lizhilities 142401 1,844.97
Summary of sgnificad accounting policies 21

The accompariyirg noles are an miegral part of the Fnaacial statements,

A per aur repist of even oo §

Membership No.: 2004149

Place @ Gurugram
[ate: Jume 25, 2000

For 8.R. Batliboi & As

Lur
Y E30000

CrM: 00540 5
Plivce: Mew [elln
[rate: Jume 25, 2020

CEQ
Place; Mew Delhi
Dabe: June 15, 1020

Wiwole- time Dipector
D005 4000
Place: New Dethi
Dale; hume 23, 20y

o

iranir Kewmae
raneder Kumar

Fimanwe Conroller
Flace: Mew Dhelhi
Diage: Jane 25, 3020



Mew Saraswati House {India) Private Limited
Statement of Prafit and Loss for vear ended 31 March 20240
CIN: U221 10DL2M3PTC262320

(¥ in millipns}

For the Year Ended
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(T in millions)

For the vear ended 31

For the vear ended 31

{Thes sprerce frows been dntengionadly feft bluniy

March 2024 March 2014
Ao Cash fow from sperating nctivitics
Luss before tax (347.47) {642.97)
Adjustment o reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and  amortisation 74.24 36,97
Employee stock option expense . HRE
Inferest cxpense G851 HE.G
[ncerest incons: (oAl (e
Unwinding of interest on security deposil (1.27) 10.99)
Loss on sole of propersy, plant and equipment 047 048
Loss on goods bost by fire 7.13
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - 004)
Miscellaneous smount written back (4, %0 (0.77)
Bad debts written off 219 1083
Provision for slow moving mventory 17.00 -
Provviston for doubtful advances 003 3.62
Provision for expecied credit loss 26,23 19.85
Operating loss befare working capital changes (155,38) (477.70)
Adjostments for changes in working capital :
Decrease in trade receivables 154.78 650.15
Decrenzed Increase) in other non-currenl assets mnd in other currenl assls b {2,263
Decrease/flncrease) in non eurrent loans & advances and eurrent loans & advances 7.5l [2.38)
Diecrease/{Increase) in invenlorics 5537 {84793
(Decrease)Increase i non current frade payables and corrent trade payables (LM 51) 104,95
Inerease/{ Decrense] in other financial liabilities 1,75 {417
Inerense(Decrease] in other current linbilities 3l (1.0
{Decrease ) Tncrease in provisions {2.59) 5.23
Cash (used in)generated from operations {9.89) 120.23
Income tax paid (.83 144.51)
Met cash (used in)/ generated from operation {A) (10.72) 145.72
. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, capital advances and CWIP (net of capiial creditor) (22.78) (A0 TEY
Proveeds from sale of figed assers mit 11
Interest received 0.41 (ol
Met cash used In Investing activities (B} {22.25) (37.06)
. Cash New from financing aetivities
Proceed{ Repayment} for long-term borrowings{net) 14501 [33.63)
Payment of izaze rentals (37.82) -
Repayment of short term hormowings (pet) [B8.08) {63.31Y
Interest paid {42.75) {BR.)
Net cish used in financing activities {C) i1.62) [185.00)
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(T in millions)

For the vear ended 31

For the year ended 31

March 2020 March 2019
Met decrease in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+T) {36,540} {76.34)
Cash and eash equivalents - at the beginning of the yoar 4002 116,36
Cash and cash equivalonts - at the end of the vear 343 40,02
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cazh in hand la 042
Chegque on hind - 2413
Balance with benks on current aceounts 327 15.47
Total Cash and cash equivalents {refier note 5C) 343 40.02
Mon-cash investing and financing reansaetions
Acouizsition of property, plant and equipment by means of o finance lease - =
Reconciliation of liabilitics srising from financing activities
o Lo
Particolars g i ferm
{including R
current maiurities) =
Asat 31 March 20019 10420 24737
Cash flows 145,01 [68.06)
Mon cash changes = =
As at 31 March 2020 33930 179.31
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral par of the financial stilements.
Az per our report of even dute
For and on behalf of the Beard of Direetors of
New Saraswati Houose Privage Limi
Ankits Gupta
Whole- tine Dircctor
Membership Mo, 400419 DM:RO0S 40 5 DIN:O0054050
Place: New Delhi Place: Mew Delhi
Dot June 25, 2020 Trate: June 25, 2020
Plage - Gurugram
Dute: Fune 25, 2020 .,,/,4..., w2
Shammi Manik Narander Knmar
CED Finance Controller

Place: Mew Delhi
Diare: June 25, 2020

Place: New Delhi
Dape; June 25, 2020
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
(Amonnts in Indian Ropees, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

New Saraswati House {India) Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. These arc standalone financial statements and, accordingly, these
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) financial statements incorporate amounts and disclosures related to the Company
only.

The Company is primarily engaged in printing and binding of educational hooks,
2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, (as
amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013,
{Ind AS compliant Schedule I1T). as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for certain following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments),

The financial statements are presented in “INR™ “Indian Rupees™ or 3 and all values are rounded to the nearest Million
(INE 1,000,004}, except when otherwise indicated,

2.2 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when:
* [Itis expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading
[t 1s expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period,

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability 13 classified as current when:
= It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
—— —a—ltis-held primarily-for the-purpose-ofrading————————————
= It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
* There is no unconditional right to defer the sertlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and eash
g months as its operating cyele.
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Foreign currencies

Functional and presentational currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally
the eurrency in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are imtiaily recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the

date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of profit or
loss.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments and equity settled employee share based payment plan at fair
value at each reporting date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that

the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* in the principal market for the asset or hability, or
* in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or Hability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generale economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the

assel in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are

avai]able--Lﬂ--measurﬂ—-i"ﬂirﬂaiue;w-nmximising—lhu-me*ﬂf-mlm'ant"uhservablrinpuls"ﬂh‘d minimising the use of

unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markers for identical assets or liabilities
e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
15 directly or indireetly observable




New Saraswali House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpur that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unohservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have eccurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, unqueted financial assets, and significant liabilities,
such as valuation of unquoted investments and equity settled employee share based payment plan, Involvement of
external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company’s management. Selection ¢riteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Company's management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Company's management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company’s management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the
fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristies and nisks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained abave,

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes,
I Disclosures for valuation methods, sighificant estimates and assumptions (Note 220
i Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 44)
iil.  Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 42)
iv. Equity Settled employee share based payment plan (Note 45)

2.5 Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration 1o which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is
recogmised,

Goods and services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value
added to the commeodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accaordingly, it is excluded from revenue,

with customers are provided in Note 2.20,

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised,

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the

customer. i.e. at the time of handing over goods to the carrier for transportation.

The company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of
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the company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant inancing components, non-
cash considerations and consideration payable to the customer (if any),

The provision for anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historica) return rates. The provision for turnover
discount and cash discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer, The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constramed until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the vanable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Some of the contracts with customer provide a right to customer of cash
rebate/discount if payment is cleared within specified due dates.

» Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period. The provision for
anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates as this method best predicts the amount
of variable consideration to which the Company will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining
estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration
that can be included in the transaction price.

¢ Vaolume rebates

The Company provides volume rebates to certain customers once the value of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract, Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer.
To estimate the variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the Company applies the most likely
amount method for contracts with a single-volume threshold and the expected value method for contracts with
more than one volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is
primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then applies the
Tequirements on consiraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the cxpecied
future rebates.

o  Cash rebates
The Company provides cash rebates to certain customers if customers make the payment within the stipulated
time given in the contract. The provision for cash discount is made on estimated hasis based on historical trends.
The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises

a refund liability for the expected future rebates.

Contract balances

Contract assets _ _
A contract assel is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the

——Company-performs-by-transferring goods-or-services to-a customer before the-customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earmed consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c.. only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation (o transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the guslpmer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due {whichever is earli i ;
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2.6

under the contracl

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and other interest-bearing financial assets, interest
income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset, When caleulating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit Josses. Interest income is included in
other income in the statement of profit or loss,

Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act. 1961, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company
operates and generates taxable income,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCT or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the lisbility method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. cxcept;

®  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liahility in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss

® Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except;

*  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the mitial recognition of
an asset or lability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
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*  In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiades and associates, deferred
tax assels are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
toreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the tetuporary differences can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the vear when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profil or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income ar directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exisis to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

2.7  Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at mtervals, the Company
recogiises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied, All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the profit
or loss as incurred,

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be
measured reliably,

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal

——orwhen no future-economic benefits are-expected from-its use or-disposal- Any gain-orlossarising on desrecognitiornr——
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, have been provided on pro-rata

basis, on the straight line method, using rates determined based on management’s technical assessment of useful
economic lives of the asset.
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Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used.

Category of assets Useful life as adopted by Useful life as per Schedule IT
management
Office Equipment 5 years 5 years
Furniture & fixture 10 vears 10 years
Yehicle 10} years B vears
Computer 6/3 years 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over economic useful life or unexpired period of lease whichever is less,
Assets costing T 5,000 or less are depreciated entirely in the year of purchase.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain
items of plant and machinery, vehicles, computers and building over estimated useful lives which are different from
useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes thar these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely ta be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is

included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,

The residual values. useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
finaneial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

[ntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition, Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets. excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure s recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when it is incurred.

Amortisation and useful lives

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever

there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be suppast
on a prospective hasis,




New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear cnded 31 March 2020
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

29

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised,

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortization method vsed Internally
senerated or
acquired
Computer software Finite (3-10 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of useful lives
Goodwill on business | In-definite No amaortization Acquired
combination
Copyrights Finite { 10 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of copyright
Content development (including | Finite (10 seasons) Amortized on straight line basis | Tnterally generated
In-house contents)* over the period of content

*QR codes are amortized over 6 years as per terms of license.
Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as
an intangible asset when the company can demonstrate all the following:

*  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, Tts intention
to complete the assel.

o iz ability to use or sell the asset.

= How the asset will generate future economic benefits,

*  The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or scll the asset,

*  The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
asset 1o be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, Amortization of the

asset begins when development 1s complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected
future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable 1o the acquisition, construction ar production of qualifying assel are capilalised

_as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs. are_expensed.in-the-period-in-which-they-are-ineurred——

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of profit and loss during extended period
when active development activity of the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borowing of funds. [t
also includes exchanges differences fo the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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2.10 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is. or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract CONVEVS
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a Lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

1. Right to use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying assel
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impaimment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assels includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
l¢ase term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Leaschold premises 3109 vears

2. Lease liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments {including in substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilitics is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., chunges to future payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate used to determine such lease payments).

). Short term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the sharl-term lease recognition exemption to its shori-term leases of office prenuses (1.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
[t also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to

be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a

straight-line hasis over the lease term.

Ind AS 116 adoption

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard to all lease contracts
existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method (altermative 11}, Consequently, the Company
recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate
with equal amount of right to use asset at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended
March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted.
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Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

«  Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, Cost is determined on fivst in, first out basis.

« Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direet materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on first in, first out basis.

= Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 1o their present
location and condition. Cest is determined on first in, first out basis,

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary o male the sale.

Impairment of non—financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asser’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows arc discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast caleulations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows afler the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by
the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
_declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate

does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the
entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used,

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss,

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indicadon
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. IT such indication cxists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGLU"s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so tha
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nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation. had no impainment loss heen
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

Goodwill is tested for imparrment annually and when circumstances indicate that the canying value may be impaired.

Impairment 1s determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of cach CGU {or group of CGUs) w
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its canying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods,

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity,

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assels are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCD), and fair value through profit or loss,

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them, With the exception of trade receivables that da
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind
AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCL, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPP1 are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amorlised cost are held within
a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial
assels classified and measured at fair value through OCT are held within a business model with the ohjective of both

holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.—— -

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation ar
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
* Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
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= Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCT) with recyeling of cumulative gains
and losses (debt instruments)

s Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT) with no recyeling of cumulative
gains and losses upon derecognition {equity instruments)

» Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL}

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A 'Fimancial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

e The asset 1s held within a business model whose ohjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash fows,
and

o  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (ETR) method. Amortised cost 15 caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and [ees or costs that are an integral part of the ETR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit
or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss,

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)
A “financial asset” is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:

s The ohjective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and
s  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCT category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income {QCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-
recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previeusly recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L,
Interest eamed whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method,

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instrumenis)

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the group may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on inilial recognition and ig imevocable.

excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCT to P&L, even on sale
of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at Fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at [air value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through OCL Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss when the right of payment las been established.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s standalone balance sheet) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

¢ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement: and
either {a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the assel.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-throngh
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the nisks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing invalvement. Tn that
case, the company also recognises an associated Hability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be reguired
o repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) mode! for measurement and

recognition of impairment loss on the following fimancial assets and eredit risk exposure:

* Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g.. loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

» Financial assets that are measured as at FYTOCI

= Lease receivables under Ind-AS 116,

o  Contract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 1135,

*  Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.

* Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FYTPL

The Company lollows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

. Trade receivables, and
. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather. it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer
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a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts 1o recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordanee with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR, When
estimating the cash lows, an entity is required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment extension, call and similar options) over
the expected life of the financial instrument, However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannol be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial ingtrument.

# Cash flows [rom the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are intezral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairtiient loss allowance on portfolio
ofits trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical ohserved
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company has
estimated provision of 9.65% is required to be made on outstanding receivables at the reporting date:

Age bracket Not due 0-215days | 215 — 365 | 365 — 730 | More than 730 days
davs days
| Credit Loss Rate 0.04% 1.72% 15.26% 45.47% 100%

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head *other expenses’ in the P&L. The halance
sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:-

a)  For financial assets measured as at amortised cost and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, ie.
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net ca ITYing
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the
ETOSS CAITying amount.

b)  Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts; ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e.
as a liability,

¢} Debt instruments measured at FVTOCT: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment

__allowance is not further reduced 1 from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented.as ‘accumulated-impairment
amount” in the OCIL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.c., financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borowings, payvables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and. in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial labilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities ar fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and fnancizal
liabilities dezignated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses atiributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gainsloss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the comulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amaortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premiwm on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to
borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fals to make a payvment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initinlly as a liability at [air value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the geuarantee. Subsequently, the liability

e isnmeasured.at the higher.of the.amount.of loss allowance determined as.per.impairmentrequirements.ofInd-AS- 108
and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation,

De-recognition
A financial liability 18 derecognised when the obligation under (he liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss
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-+—The-date-that-the-Company-recognises-related restructuring costs————

Re-classification of Financial Assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilitics on initial recognition. After iitial
recognition, ne reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and fivancial liabilities. For
financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model
lor managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant
to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model vccurs
when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first
day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate
any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsclidated balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, Lo realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultanecusly.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense. when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. 1f the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset
to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example. a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset cerling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit lability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained eamings through OCT in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service cosis are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curlailment, and

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount mate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the unconsolidated statement

of profit and loss:

®  Service cosis comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

» NNet interest expense or income.

Compensated absences
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Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term cmplovee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects [o pay as
a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date,

215 Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, When the Company expects some or all ofa provision
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain, The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriale, the risks specific to the liabilitv. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

2.16  Cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shon-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject o an
insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in hand and short term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

2.17 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders of
the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

2.18 Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when
the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate

———laws-in-Tndia;-a-distribution-is-authorised-when-it-is-approved-by the-shareholders: A correspunding awmumr s
recognised directly in equity.

2.19  All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions as per the
requirement of Schedule TI1, unless otherwise stated.

2.20 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures (including contingent liabilities). The management belicves
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable, Uncertainty about these

%,
)
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assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes thar reguire a marerial adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
or labilities affected in future periods.

A. Judgement

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements;

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease tetm as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option (o
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

For the lease contracts that include extension and termination options, the Company applies judgement in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not 10 exercise the option 1o renew or lerminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevanl factors thal create an economic incentive for il to exercise either the renewal or lemination,
Aller the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a sigmficant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing
of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of books include cash rebates and volume rebates and a right to retum the goods that
give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the
expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better prediets the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the
armount of variable consideration is constrained, The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration
are not constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the cument economic conditions. In
addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below, The Company based its assumptions and estimates on paramelers available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances atising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they vceur,

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised (o the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

Defined benetit plans (gratuity benefits)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using

actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation nnﬂlw.s makmg various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future, These include the dete alis ) of the discount rate, foture salary i |11crease5 aud mclrrahty
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rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds with term that correspond with the expected term of the
defined benefit obligation,

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval
in response to demographic changes. Futire salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future
inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Nate 30,
Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments thal have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit
Insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e.. gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next vear which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted, At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rares, forecast economic conditions and ECLs
is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstanices and of forecast economic
conditions, The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the fature. For details of allowance for doubtful debts please refer Note
Sa.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (*CGL") is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current marker assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested imdividually are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (*CGU"),

Markel related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount, Key assumptions on which

—— -managementhas based its.determination of recoverable amount-inelude-estimated-long-term-growth rates; weighted———
average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past experience and
represent management’s best estimate about future developments.

Estimating variable consideration for right of return, volume rebates and cash rebates

Certain contracts for the sale of books include a right of return, volume rchates and cash rebates that give rise to
variable consideration. Tn estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the expected
value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled.

‘The Company estimates variable considerations to be includegt in the transaction price for the sale of goods with a
right of return, volume rebates and cash rebates, =
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Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary 1o obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company “would have
to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the |BR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available.

Exceptional item

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the income statement that are of such size, nature or
incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance for the period. Materiality
threshold can be used to select items to be disclosed as exceptional on case to case basis. This threshold would be
applied separately for standalone as well as consolidated financial statements. However, in case an item qualifies for
disclosure in standalone financial statements but not in consolidated financial statements or vice versa, this would
need to be evaluated on case to case basis the above analysis, mainly following items would be evaluated for disclosure
as excepiional items:

a) Reassessment/ Change in life of asset (in case of re-evaluation of business/product, impact of all assets specific
to that business/product to be considered for applying the threshold).

b} Provision for other than temporary diminution in the value of non-current investment.

¢)  Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value or of property, plant and equipment to recoverable amount, as
well as reversals of such write downs.

d) Incase of other significant item of income or expense, not covered ahove, the same would be evaluated on a case
to case basis for disclosure under exceplional items

New and amended standards

The Company applied Ind AS |16 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption
of this new accounting standard is described below, The Company has not early adopted any standards, amendments
that have been issued but are not yet effective/notified.

Several other amendments apply for the first time for the year ending 31 March 2020, but do not have an impact on
the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards, amendments that have
been issued but are not vet effective/notified,

Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS TT6 supersedes Tnd AS 17 Teagsesincloding irs appenidices (Appendix C of Tnd AS 17 Determining whether
an Arangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS
|7 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of'a Lease). The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases
on the balance sheet,

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method (alternative 11) ol adoption with the date
af initial application of 01 April 2019 and accordingly comparative figurcs are not restated. The Company elected to
use the transition practical expedient to not reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at 01 April 2019, Instead,
the Company applied the standard only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 and
Appendix C of Ind AS 17 al the date of initial application. The Company alse elected to use the recognition exempuum.

(4
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for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a
purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value {lew-value
assets).

Accordingly, the Company has recognised a lease liability as at April 01, 2019 for leases previously classified as an
operating lease applying Ind AS 17. The lessee shall measure that lease liability at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted usimg the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Further, an amount equal 1o the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the
balance sheet as Right to Use (“"ROU™).
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The effect of adoption of Ind AS 116 is as follows:

As on trangition date (01 April 2019): Amount in million
Asset

Right to use asset 15142
Liability

Lease equalisation reserve (6.80)
Lease hability 158.22
Impact on statement of Profit and Loss March 31, 2020
Inctease in depreciation expense 30,70
Increase in finance cost [14.42
Decrease in other expenses (37.82)
Increase in loss 7.30
Impact on statement of cash flow March 31, 2020
Payment of lease rentals 37.82
Net cash flow from operating activities 37.82
Payment of lease rentals (37.82)
Net cash flow from financing activities (37.82)

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of Ind AS 12 Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does
it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
Appendix specifically addresses the following:

#  Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

*  The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

# How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates

# How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Company determines whether 1o consider each uncertain tax treaiment separately or together with one or more
-other uncertain tax treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertamty.,

——The-Company-applies significant-judgement-in-identifying uncertainties over-income-tax-treatments; =
The Appendix did not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendments to Ind AS 109: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under Ind AS 109, a debt instrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, provided that the confractual cash flows are “solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding’ (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held within the appropriate business model for that
classification. The amendments to Ind AS 109 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of an
event or circumstance that causes the early terming ign of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives
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There were no such transactions in the company accordingly, these amendments had no mpact on the financial
statements of the Compaiy.

Amendments to Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendmenis to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement ocours
during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs
during the annual reporting period, an entity is required to determine the current service cost for the remainder of the
period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event, An
entity is also required to determine the net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement using the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan
and the plan assets after that event, and the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit liability (asset),

The amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as it did not have any plan amendments,
curtailments. or settlements during the period
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4B. Right to use asset (refer note 32) (T in millions)

Right to use

aszet Total

Caost

At 01 April 2018 = =
Purchases - ”
Disposals & .

At 31 March 2019 = -
Purchases 15142 151.42
Disposals {1.50) 1500
At 31 March 2020 149.92 149.92

Acenmulated depreciation

At 01 April 2018 - -
Amortization for the year = g
Disposals 2 S
At 31 March 2019 s =
Amortization for the year 30.70 30,70
Disposals - -
At 31 March 2020 30.70 30.70

Net block
At 31 March 2020 119.22 118.22
At 31 March 2019 - -
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5. Financial assets

SA. Trade receivables (% in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Trade receivahles
Comsidered good- Secured

Considered pood- Unsecured 638,79 #71.499
Receivables which have significant inerease in credit risk T0.34 4411
Receivables- credit impaired - -
T20.13 916.10
Less : Allowances for expected credit loss
Considered good- Secured - -
Considered good- Unsecured - -
Receivables which have significent increase in credit risk {7.54) {411
Feceivables- credit impaired - -
(70.34) {44.11)
Net trade receivables
Considered good- Secured - -
Conzidered pood- Unsecured 658.79 87109
Receivables which have significant increaze in credit risk - -
Receivables- credit impaired - -
Total trade receivables 658.79 87199
Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 33) 922 1.05
Current 654,79 87199
Non-Current - -

The movement in impairment of trade receivables is as follow:

{T in millions)

As at As at

b 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening balance 44.11 24,26
Additions 26,23 19,85
Write ofl L -
Closing balance Ti.34 44.11

Mo trade receivable are due from director ar sther officer of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.
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5B

. Loans

(% in millions)

As at
M March 2020

As ar
31 March 20092

Security deposits = Non Current 3.38 1237
Securily deposits - Current £.97 187
Adlvances recovernble in cash or kind (refer note (1) below) 11.31 15,494
Total Loans and advances 23.66 323
Current 20.28 17.86
Mon-Carrent 338 12,37
Note {a)
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Considered good, unseeured 10.57 1591
Congidered pood, secured = -
Fecoverable which have significant increase in credit risk 163 3
Recoverable - eredit impaired - -
14.22 15.91
Less
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss {3.63) *
10.57 1591
Advances recoverable from relatied partics
Unsecured, considered good .74 0.08
Unsecured, considered doubiful - S
0.74 .08
11.31 15.99
5C. Cash and cash equivalents % in millions)
As at Asal
31 March 20240 31 March 2019
Balances with banks
- 00 currenl accounts 327 1547
Cash on hand 16 0.42
Chegue on hand - 2413
Tatal Cash and cash equivalents 343 40.02
Current 343 40.02
Mon-Current - =
5D, Other financial assets (% in millinns)
As al As at
31 March 202i 31 March 2019
Margin money depasit {refer note below) 010 0%
Total other financial Assets 010 L%
Current - =
—Non=Current = T (8 L [T
Naote
Margin money deposits are under lign with hanks towards bank guarantees issued by them,
6. Inventories (% in millions)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As ol
31 March 20192

Raw matenals
Finizhed goods
- Manufactured goods

grovision forslow moving inventory (reler note 264

74,00 35.12
32141 415.66
395.41 450.78
(27.00} -

3afdl 450,78
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TA.

TB.

TC.

Other assets

Capital advances

(¥ in millions)

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good (Non current)
Total Capital advances

Prepaid expenses

As al As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
0.08 ~
o8 -

(% im millions)

. As at As at
ki 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Prepaid expenses (Non current) 0.97 .60
Prepaid expenses (Current) 4.41 .48
Total Prepaid expenses 538 H.08
(ther assets {7 in millions)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Income tax recoverable 21.12 20097
GET Recoverable 32 -

Ancillary cost of arranging borrowings (Non current) = 0.16
Ancillary cost of arranging borrowings {Current) 14 0.52
Accrued income 003 -

Total Other assets 11.63 21.65
Current 25,99 700
Mon-Current L1b 2273
Deferred taxes {2 in millions)

Asat Asg at

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Items leading to ereation of deferred tax assets
Impact of expenditure charged to the stutement of profit and loss account in the current year
but allowed for tax purposes on payviment basis in subsequent year
Provision for doubtful debt & advances

Impact of business loss carry forwarded in néxt vears

Total deferred tax assets _

Items leading to creation of deferred tax liabilities

Fixed assets: impact of differences between tax depreciation and depreciation’ amonization
charged in the financial statements

Total deferved tax lisbilities

Net deferred tax assers

595

12584
179.30

—T T

21.62

21.62

176.47
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9. Share Capital (T in millions)
Prirticulr As at As at
. o 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Authorised
10,000 (31 March 20019: 100,000) equity shares of T 10/- gach |00 1.00

[ssued, subscribed and fully paid up
27,236 (31 March 2019 27.236) equity shares of T 10/- ¢ach 0.28 .28
(L28 .28

a, Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares

Mo, of shares

Essued, subseribed and fully paid up

As at 31 March 2018 20,500
Increase/{ Decrease) during the year® i, 730
As at 31 March 2019 27,236
Increase/ Decrease) during the year -

As at 31 March 2020 217,236

* During Financial Year 2018-19, the company has converted 5.200 optionally convertible redeemable debentures of face value of 2
100,000 each into 6.736 equity shares of face value of ¥ 10 each at a premium of Rs. 77,187 per share,

b. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled ta one
vote per share. No dividend has been proposed by the board of director during the year ended 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019 Nil), In
the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder,

e. Shares held by holding company and their subsidiaries

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
8 Chand And Company Limited. 22336 22336
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, Subsidiary of the holding company 4,900 4,500

d. Details of shareholder holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

5 Chand And Company Limited, the Holding Company. No. of shares % of shares
Asat 31 March 2019 22335 2%
As at 31 March 2020 22,336 B2.01%
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, subsidiary of the holding company. S No-of shares———S4-of shares-
Asat 31 March 2019 4,800 L 7.00%,
Agar 31 March 2020 4,900 | 7.99%

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholder/ member and other declarations reecived from shareholder
regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares,
|:--
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fi =5t o
If & rai
W LIBINE | =il

<1 New Dalhi |

b 5.7

Vi




MNew Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

10, Other Equity

(¥ in millions)

As at
A1 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Retained carning

Balance as the beginning of year (333.69) 113.54
Less: Loss for the year [524.61) (438.11)
Add/Less: Other comprehensive (TossVincome for the vear {190 [0 55
Balance as the end of year {B60.20) {333.6%)
General reserve

Balance as the begimning of vear 390,00 -
Increase/(Decrease) during the vear - 30000
Balance as the end of vear 390,00 390,00
Debenture redemption reserve

Balance as the beginning of year - 390,00
Increase/{ Decrease) during the year - (394000
Balance as the end of vear = =
Securitics premium account

Balance as the beginning of year G69.83 [45.90
Increase/{ Decrease) during the year - 519,93
Balance as the end of year 66983 6069.83
Deemed capitsl contribution

Balance as the beginning of vear 1.56 142
[ncrease/{Decrease) during the year 5 014
Balance as the end of year 1.56 1.56

MNature and purpose of reserves

Security premium reserve
Securilies premium reserve is used to record the premium on Jssue of shares. The reserve can be atilised only for limiled purposes in

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

General reserve
General reserve was created upon 13.25% optionally convertible redeemahle debentures were converled inlo equity shares, the

debenture redemption reserve was transferred to General Reserve. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance

with the provisions of the Conpanies Act, 2013,

Deemed capital eontribution
Deemed capital contribution represents Employe stock option (ESOP) cost allocated by the parent Company for stock options issued fo
employees of the Company,
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I Borrowings

11A: Mon=current borrwvings (¥ in millions)
Asoalt Asoar
Faesivy iy 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Term lnans
Indian Apree loan fram bank (REL Bank) {secyred ) (refer 2 & U below) - AR LH]
Forgign Currency loan from bank (RBL Bank) (secured) {(refer note | & 9 below) - 5667
Vehicle lnans
Indean rpes loan Trom Banks {secured) (Beter note 3 & £ below) 4,08 0,52
Loan from Group Company
Indian rapes boan from helding co.frefor note 5 & & below) 150,00 2500
Indian rupec loan from enterprise ander same contrel (refer note 7 & 8 below) 1 17.50 3500
Total Non-current horrowings 27159 127.19
Secured 4. 67.1%
Unsecared TET.EN ail. 0
MNotes:

L. Company has saken farcign currency term loan figin RBL Bank Limited in financeal yzar 200 7-18 which carries imeress at 9.75% pa repayable
in 12 quanierly instalments staring from May-2018. The loan is secured by way of (i) Fiest pard passu charoe on entire existing and future current
assels (1) First pari passu charge over the entive existing and future fGxed asset of the Company, and (iii) Corporate Guaraniee of § Chand And
Company Limited. (iv) Personal Gurantee of Me, Himanshu Gupta and Mr, Dinesh Kumar Thunjhnowala. Interest is 1o be paid on menthly basis.
Principal and interest both are fully hedged by REL Bank Limited, Due to COVID <19, Bank has allowed the moratorium peried for the principal

due for the quanier payoable in the month of May-20240,

L. Company has taken term loan frorm RBL Bank Limited in fnancial year 2007-18 which camies interest at 10,20% p.a, (fexi} repayable in 12
quarterly instalments staring from May-2018, . The lean is secured by way of (i) Firsl pari passu charge on entire existing and fituse eurrent
nssels (i) First pari passu charge over entire existing ane Tumire fxed ssset of the Company. and (i) Corporate Guamniee of § Chond And
Company Limited. (iv) Personal Gurantes of Mr. Himansho Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kurnar Jhanjhnowala, Due o COVID -19, Bank has allowed

the moratorium period for the principal dee for the guarter payable in the month of May-2020.

3. Vehicle loan from HDFC bank bas besn faken in the year 2016-17, secored by way of hypothecation of respective vehicle in favour of the bank.
[t carmes interest rate of 9.36% poa. The Joan is repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments beginning from May 20146,

4. Wehicle loan from M's. Daimler Finencial Services has been taken in the year 2019-20, secured Iy way of hypolhecation of respective vehicle m
favour of the Lendor, It carries interest rate of 10,75% p.a. The loan is repayable in 45 equal monthly instalments begiming from Ot 2019,

5. The Company has taken 2 loan of 3 30 millien from the Nolding Company during the year ended 31 March 2008 and carrics interest @ 1.75%
pean. The Facility will be conventible al the aption of the eempany after | year and if not converied on or after 3 years, the loan shall Be repaid by
the company on completion of 3 yeurs. The Company has repaid 2 5 millions in the year 2007-18. The company has additionally taken loan o 2
125 million during year ended 31 March 2020, Balance outstanding as on 31 March 2020038 T 130 million. The Holding company during the year
ended 31 March 2020 Tas changed interest cate equal 1o State Bank ol India's 2 Year MCLR plus 250 Bps pa. from existing 10.75% p.a., on

entire loan of £ 150 million.

T T The Tomipany Fies taken o fnan of ¥ 35 millions from Nirja Publishcrs & Frinters Private Limited, fellow subsidiary, during the vear ended 31
March 2004 and camvies interest @ 1105% pa. The facility will be convertible at the option of the company afler | vear and if not converted on
or afler 3 years, the loan shall be repaid by the company en completion of 3 yeurs. The company has additionally taken loan of T £ millien during
yeur ended 31 March 2020, Balimee cutstanding us on 31 March 2020 is T 40 million. The conmpany during the year endad 31 March 2020 has
changed interest rate equal 1o Stile Bank of India's 2 Year MCLE plus 250 Bps paa. from existng | 1.13% p.a. on etitive loan of 3 40 millian,

B, The Compuny has taken s loon of T 77.50 millions from Chhava Prakashani Pyt Ld, fellow subsidiary, during the year ended 33 Marcl: 2020 and
carrics interest rate equal 1o Stete Bank of Indio's 2 Year MCLE plus 250 Bps pa, The focilicy will be convertible ar the option of the company
afler 1 year and if pot converted on o after 3 years, the Joan shall be repatd by the company on completion of 3 vears.,

2 Loan covenand

i and accordingly the entine loan his been classified under “eurrents maturity of long term bo

winges'.

b
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1B, Current borrowings ¥ in millions)
As at As af
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Current maturity of long term borrowings

Term Loan

Indian rupee foan from bank (RBL Bank) (secured) (refer note 11AGZ) & 11A[9)) 1L06 10040
Foreign Currency loan from bank (RBL Bank) isecured) (refer note 11A{1] & 1 TA{9) F0.67 56,67
Vehicle Loan

Indmn rupee loan from bank {secured) 1.04 043
Total Carrent maturity of Indian currency loan #7.71 67.10

Cash Credit
Indian rigpee loan from bank {secured) (refer note 1A, 1B & 2 below) 179.31 237.37

Working capital demand loan

Indian rupee loan from bank (scoured) (refer note 2 helow) - 10,030

Taotal current borrowings M47.02 31447

Less: Amount presented under "other financial Labilities" (67.71) (67.10%

Net eurrent horrowings 179.31 247.37

Secured 179.31 24737

Unsecured - -
Notes:

IA. Cash Credit from HDFC bank under multiple banks arrangment with Kotak Bank and RBL Bank is carrying an interest rate of 10.14%
p. (31 March 20019: 10.20% p.a.) repayable on demand. The loan is secured by way of (1) first part passu charge on entire existing and
furure current asset (ii) first pari passu charge on entire existing and fisture movable fixed assets of the company (iii) Corporate Guarantee
by & Chand And Company Limited. {iv) Personal Gurantee of Mr. Himanshy Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Thunjhnuwala,

1B. Cash Credit from Kotk bank under multiple banks arrangment with HDFC Bank and RBL Bank is carrving an interest rate of 9.98% p.a.
(3] March 2019 : 9.95% p.a.) repayable on demand, The loan is secured by way of (i) first pari passu charge on entire existing and fumre
current asset (i} first pari passu charge on entire existing and future movable fixed assets of the company (iii) Corporate Guarsniee by S
Chand And Company Limited. (iv) Personal Gurantee of Me. Himenshi Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnowala,

2 Cash Credit 'WCDL from REL Bank is carrying an interest rate of 983 % poa. (31 March 2019 ; 10.20 % p..} repayable on demand.
The loan is secured by way of (i} charge on entire existing and future current assets (ii) exclusive charges over the entire existing and
future fixed asset of the Company (iif) Corporate Guarantee by S Chand And Company Limited, (iv) Personal Gurantee of Mr, Himanshu
Ciupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala, The Company has repaid the WCDL of T 10 million in the current year.,

2. Trade payables {Eimr-millionsy—
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
MNon-Current
Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - B2
Current
Trade payables of micro enterprises and small enterprises {refer note 34} 2214 2343
Trade payables of related entities (refer note 33b) 263.3% 283.92
Trade payables other than micro enterprises and smal] enterprises o 212.03 2949.57
Tuotal trade payables Fa o use 2 497,55 613.74
/o

12 o= \%
Current [ q welhi | = 497.55 5.92
Mon-Current i ,r | New = 682

'\J, ;

\'r'.q- o U

_.'5 & ? i
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13

(ther financial Habilites

(¥ in millions)

As af
31 March 2020

Asat
31 Murch 2019

Current maturity of long term boreowings {refer note 1B shove)

Interest accrued and due on current borrowings
Inierest accrued but not duc on current borrowings
Employee related payables

Lease Liablilty- Current {refer note 32)

Lease Liablilty- Non Corrent (refer nole 32)
Total other financial Habilities

Current
MNon current

. Provisians

a7.71 aran
L1.97 -
= (.64
21.49 19.74
23504 =
108.24 -
213445 H7.48
126.21 87.48
108.24 -

(% in millions)

A oat
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 201%

Provision for gratuity (Mon Current) (refer note 30
Provision for leave encashment (Current) (refer note 31)
Tuotal Provisions

Current
MNon current

. Other hahilities

5.58 3.93
3.07 5.66
R.65 .64
3.07 5.66
5.58 398
(% in millions)

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Other payables:

Stamtory dues

Credivor for capital expenditure
Advance from customer

Total Other labilitics

Current
MNon current

{This space fos been imtentionally left blank)

175 16.06

(L% 1.57
19.56 13.94
30.99 3157
30.99 31.57
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I6. Revenue from contract with customers

{T in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the yvear ended
31 March 2019

Sale of products
Finizhed goods
Less: Discount

Other operating revenue
Scrap sales
Total revenue from operations

Disaggregated revenue information

96745 Ti0.97
{286.12) {135.59)
681.33 505.38
6.29 2.55
687.62 597.93

(% in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Faor the vear ended
31 March 2019

India
Outside India

Timing of revenue recognition

683.02 582.98
4.60 14.95
687.62 597.93

{2 in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Goods transferred at a point in time

G87.62

597,93

GR7.62

597.93

The Company collects Goods and Service Tax (GST) on behalf of the Government and hence, GST is not included in revenue from

contract with customers.

Contract balances

(% in millions)

At
31 March 2020

At
31 March 2019

Trade receivables

Contract liahilities (advance from customer)

G58.79
19,56

B71.59
13.94

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 150 days. For year ended March 2020 ¥ 26.23 million
{March 2019: T 19.85 million) was recognised as provision lor expected credit losses on trade receivables,

_Right to return asset and refund Liability

(¥ in millions)

Al
31 March 2020

At
31 March 2019

Refund liabilities
Arising from discounts
Arising from rights of retum

111.89 53.91
336,79 34186
448.68 395.77




New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to linuncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
For the vear ended  For the vear ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue as per contracted price 1,432.70 1.900,00
Adjustments
Sales retumn 45890 116648
Discount 28612 135.59
G87.62 597.93

Performance obligation
Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:

Manufactured goods
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods to the transporter designated by the customer or to the customer

whichever is earlier.

The customer has a right 1o return material to an extent as may be agreed upon with each customer or within the limits as may be
determined by the company. The customer is also eligible for discounts based on achicvement of revenue targets as may be agreed,

17. Other income (T in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

17.1 Finance income

Interest income on

- Bank deposits 0,05 =

- Others (.36 0.01

Unwinding of interest on security deposit 1.27 0.99

Total finance income 1.68 1.00
17.2  Other income

Foreign exchangs differences (net) - 0.04

Miscellancous income B.86 0.94

Armount written back 4.90 .77

Tuotal other income 13.76 1.75

CGrand Total 15.44 275




Mew Saraswati House (India) Private Limited

Nates to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

18. Cost of published goods/raw material consumed

20,

(% in millions)

For the yvear ended
31 March 2020

For the yvear ended
31 March 2019

Inventories al the beginning of the year
Add ¢ Purchases of published books
Add : Purchases of paper

Add : Purchases of C0

Less : Inventorics at the end of the year
Cost of published goods/inaterial consumed

Details of raw material purchased
Paper

Books

ch

Purchase of traded books

3512 3668
135.07 283.02
16416 233,81

.34 111
334.69 554,62
{74.00) (35.12)
260.69 519.50
6416 23381
135407 283.02

0.34 .11
199.57 517.94

(% in millians)

Faor the vear ended
31 March 2020

For the vear ended
31 March 2019

Traded books

{Increase)Decrease in Inventories

0.0

3.23

.10

323

T in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the vear ended
31 March 2019

Inventories at the end of the vear

Finished gaods 294.41 415,66
294.41 415.66
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 415,66 RELE
Stock lost by fire {refer note 264) - (35.13)
415.06 278.31
{Increase)/decrease in inventories 121.25 {137.35)
Details of Inventories
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Finished goods
- Manufactured goods
Books 294,41 41566
294,41 415.66




New Saraswati House (Indin) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
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21. Publication expenses (¥ in millions)

For the year ended  For the vear ended

31 Mareh 2020 31 Mareh 2019
Printing, binding and processing charges 10,78 19.54
Royalty cxpenses 2740 19.92
Freight and cartage cxpenses T.74 12.89
Total publication expenses 45.98 52.65
22. Employee benefit expenses (% in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Salames, wages and honus 206,05 23815
Employee stock option expense (refer note 45) - 014
Contribution to provident and other funds | 5.5 17.99
Creatuity expense {refer note 30} 4.70 7.09
Staff welfare cxpenses 432 5.94
Total employee benelit expenses 230.57 270.21
23. Selling and distribution expenses (¥ in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Advertisement, publiciry and exhibition 25.75 69,70
Travelling and conveyance in.R4 5415
Freight and distribution 2L.11 in.1e
Packing expenses 588 10.95
Wehicle nning and maintenance 1.44 2.3%
Total selling and distribution expenses 91.42 167.37
24, Finance cost {% in millions)

For the vear ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 3 March 2019
Interest
- O debentures - 2793
= On cash credit and working capital demand loan 2712 25.09
- On term lopan 22.83 26.07
= On vebicle loan .33 019
- O other 1823 876
Bank charges 0.08 0.20
————Processing-fees-~bank loan—— = = = 1224 ms—

Total finance cost 69,83 89.41
25. Depreciation and amortisation expenses {¥ in millions)
For the vear ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Diepreciation of property, plant & equipment (refer note 3) .90 873

Depreciation of rght to usc asset (refer note 4B) 30.70 -
Amorisation of intangible assets (refer note 44) 16.64 28,22
Taotal depreciation and amortisation expenses 74.24 36.97




MNew Saraswatl House (India) Private Limited
Maotes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC 262320

26. (ther expenses (¥ in millions)

For the vear ended For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Communication cost 2.98 4.69
Rent {refer nome 32) 619 45 66
Rates and taxes 1.18 -
Insuranee 474 4.25
Repair and maintenance -
-Buildings 0,92 L.16
-Other 31.59 507
Printing and stationery I.45 2.50
Postage 8:17 11,45
Legal and profeszional fee 1323 10.75
Shared services cost {refer note 46) 2020 2177
Payment to auditor {refer note below) 268 1.04
Water and electricily charges 4.67 374
Office expenses 24,40 26,60
Security cxpenses 322 343
Membership and subscription 0.20 045
Website design charges .06 {107
Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note 40) - 0.75
Donation .42 =
Recruitment charges . (.84
Luss om sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 0.15 048
Assets wrilten ofl 032 -
Bud debt written off 2.19 10,83
Provision for bad & doubtful debis 26.23 1985
Provision for advances 0n.03 362
Miscellaneous expenses .84 0.83
Tatal other expenses 129.45 183.83

Pavment to auditor

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
As anditor
Audit fee 1.80 L.80
Limited review fees 0.90 0.90
In ather capacity
Out of pocket expenses 028 0.34
2.9% 3.04
26A. Exceptional Items ; (T in millions)
For the year ended  For the vear ended
31 March 2020 31 Mareh 2019
Sales Return (refer note a below) - (5070
Provision for slow moving inventory {refer noie b helow) {27.00) -
Loss of poods by fire {refer note ¢ below) - (7.13)
(27.00) (57.83)

a) During the year ended March 31, 2019, the company experienced significan! sales retumn which was more than the management
estimates made during year ended March 31, 2018, out of which ¥ 50.70 million was considered exceptional ns being other than the
prdinary course of business,




MNew Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to [inancial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

27,

¢} The company has one of its warchouse situated at "Sahibabad” | During the year ended March 31, 2019, o fire broke in warehouse,
which resulted in loss of finished goods lying in werehouse at that peint in lime. The valuation of goods computed by the management at
cost is T 38,13 million, which his been disclosed as an exceptional item. The company has received insurance claim of 2 50.13 million

and the scrap value realised from such stock is 4 0.87 million during the year ended March 31, 2019 . which have been netied off fiom the
exceptional item,

Components of Other Comprehensive Tncome (QOCT)
The disagaregation of changes in other comprehensive income by each type of equity is shown below:

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Re-measurement gains/{ losses) on defined benefit pluns (1.90) 13.25
Tax impact on re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefir plans - (4.47)
(1.90) 10.58

[This space hag been intentionally left Mlank]
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18,

219a.

Earnings per share
Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable 1o equity holder by the weighted average number of equity
shures owstandmg during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profil for the year atributable to equity holder by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares into equity shares

The following refleets the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS compuiations
{T in millions)

For the year ended 31 For the vear ended 31

March 2020 March 201%
Profit attributable to equity holder of the company for computing basic EPS (524.61) {458.11)
{524.61) (458.11)
Profit attributable to equity holder of the company for computing diluied EPS
Met profit / {loss) as above [324.61) (458.11)
Add: Interest on debentures (net of tax) - 14,51
(524.61) {438.30)
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing -

- Busic EPS 27,236 23.E68
- Diluwted EPS 27,234 23,868
Basic EPS (19.261} (19.194)
Diluted EPS (19,261} (19, 194)

Income taxes
(T in millions)

For the vear ended 31 For the vear ended 31

March 2020 March 2019
Income tax charged to statement of profit and loss
Current ingome tax charge - -
Adjustment of taxes for carlier years (.68 (1.74)
Deferred tax charge 17646 (183,12}
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 177.14 {184.56)
OCT sectivn (% in millions)
For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2020 March 2019

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCT during the year
Met loss/{gain} on remeasurement of defined bencfit plan - {4.47)
Income tax charged to OCI - {447)




New Saraswati Hoose (Tndia) Private Limited
Motes to finanelal statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
CIN: U22110DL2013PTCI62320

29h. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiphied by India's domestic tux rate for 31 March 2020 and 31 Macch 2019
{Z in millions)

For the vear ended 31 For the vear ended 31

March 2020 March 2019

Accounting profit before tax (347.47) {642.97)
AnIndia’s statutory inecome tax rate af 29,12% (31 March 2019 29.12%) (101.18) (187.23)
Deductible expenses for tax purpose (hod) (3.96)
MNon-deductible expenses for tax purposes 0.60 742
Other non-deductible cxpenses - (1.0
Mo recognition of deferred 1ax 2ssets on current year losses 10122 -
Di-recognition of apening deferred 1ax assels 177.14 -

Al the effective income tax rate 177,14 {184.86)
Income 1ax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 177.14 {184.36)
Effective tax rate -51% 29%

The company continues to pay income tax under older tax regime and have not opted for lower tax rate pursuant 1o Taxation Law (Amendment)
Ordinance, 2019 considering the accumuluted losses and other benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961, The company plans to opt for lower tax
regime once these benefits are utilised.
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3. Defined benefit plans: Gratuity
The Company has o defined benefit grauity plan. Under the grtuity plan, every employvee who has completed wt jeast five vear of service wets a
gratuity on departure at 15 davs of Tast drawn salary for each completed vear of service or pant thereof in excess of six months sulbgect oo maxinuam
of 2 million. The scheme is fiunded with an insurance company in the farm of qualilving insurunce policy.

Anvestments. witho insueer.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense reeognised in thie profit and loss sccount and amodnts recognized in the

balunce sheet for Grawity Plan,

Statement of Profit & Loss secount
Met employvee benefit expense recognised in emplovee Costz

(E in millions)

For the year ended
3 Muarch 20240

Far the vear ended
31 March 2019

Current service cosl
Interest cost on defined obligation
Interast income on plan asser

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:

442 704
132 1,06
i 1.00) {111}
4.70 7.99

(2 in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the vear ended
31 March 2019

Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation
Actuarial gaing / {losses) on agsers

Balance sheet

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligativn are as follows:

(h.38 16,75
1.52 {140
1.9 15.35

(T in millions)

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Opening detined henefit ablization
Currenl service cosl

Interes: cost

Benefits pand

Actuarial {gains) / losses on ohligation
Closing defined benefit obligation

Current Portion
Mon = Current Portion

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

745 2708
4.42 T
1.32 20

(5.47) (1.54)
.38 {16.75)

18.14 1749

18.14 17.49

(% in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Opening fair value of plan assers
Expected return

Contributions by employer
Benefits paid

Actuarial gain/{loss)

Closing fair valoe of plan assets

The Compuny contributed 2 3 millions this vear (31 March 2019; 7 NIL)

1351 1437
1.04 111
5.00 e

(5.47) (1.94)

{1.52) {0.03)

12.56 1351

The major calegorivs of plan sssets as a percentage of the fuir value of total plan assets are as Tollows:

For the year ended
31 March 2020

~ For (he year ended

31 March 2019

s

FERH -

The economic and demographic assumptions used in defermining gratuity obligations for the company’s plans are shown below:

For the vear ended For the vear ended
31 March 2020 3 March 2019

Discount raie 6, T T.70%%

Expected rate of return on assers 5.78% T.70%

Expected rate of salury increase 0y G0

Retirement Age {In year) o} yrear 60 year
Emplovee tumover ;-

= Ape upto 2 year ; KR 3.00%,

- Ape 31 - 44 year | 200 200%

- Aoe above 45 yeur 1008 1.00%%

Mortaiity Rate [ALM (2012-14) TALM (200608 )

Ltimute k= Ultimate

w7
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The estimates of fuinre salary inereases. eonsidered in actuarial valustion, fake aceount of inflation, sentority, promotion and oflwr relevant factor,

such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The vverall expecied rate of retum on assets is delermined based on the marke! prices prevaiting on that dale, applicable o the period over which the

ubligation is 10 be senled.

The impact of seasitivity analysis due to changes in the significant actuarial assumptions on the defined benefit obligations i given in below

tahle:
Change in As ai Asut
assumptions 31 March 2020 31 Murch 2019
Dscount rate + 1% {15.87) {1536}
- 1% 2088 20,05
Expected rate of salary increase + 1% 20.72 20.03
-1% (1589} (1530

The sensitivity analyses ahove have been determined bused om a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit abligation as a result of

reasonable changes in key assumptions oceurring at the end of the reporting perind,

The following puyments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future vear: {2 in millions)
As at Asat
31 Muarch 2020 A1 March 2019
Year | h36 (63
Year 2 0.36 038
Year 3 .63 .43
Year 4 0.58 .68
Year 3 .69 0.63
Year b 1o L0 .82 1.74

The aversge duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reparting period is 13,18 year (31 March 2019 15,52 year),

3l. Defined benefit plans: Leave Encashment
A.  Leave Epcashment for Sick Leaves

I respect of leave encashment benefit. accrual is made on e busis of o year-end actmrial valuation in pursuance of the Company’s leave rules.
The Company has provided for leave benefits based on the actoarial valuation dene as per Project Unit Credit Method,

The liowing tahle sets our for the slatus of leave encashment plan:

(% in millions)

Far the year ended
31 Murch 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation *
Drigcount Rate at Year - end

Financial Assumptions
DHseount Rate

Salary Increase Rate

Demographic Assumptions
Mortality Hate

Withdrawal Rate

Retrement age
Leave Avalment (%)

Expected Future Cashilows
Year |
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5
Year & o 10

1.30
6. 18%

6, T8
6.00%

LALM (2012-14)
Ultamate

Upto 3 vears - 3%
31 - 44 vears - 2%

45 years and above - 1%

O years
L0,

010
11
11
n.11
.12
0.54

1.0%

il e
b
m
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Sensitivity Analysis

Change in As at As at
Assumptions 31 March 2020 31 March 2009
[hscount Rate + 1% 1.19
= 1% 1.42
Expected rute of salary inerease + 1% Lan
- 1% 115

B. [Leave Encashment for Paid Leaves

In respect of leave encashment benefit, acensal is made on the busis of a year-end actuarial valuation in pursuanes of the Company™s leave rules
The Company has provided for leave benefits based on the actuarial valuation done as per Projeet Unit Credit Method.

The following tzhle sets out for the states of leave encashment plan;

(% in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation *
Daseount Rate ar Year - cmd

Financial Assumptions
Dscount Rate

Salary Increase Rale

Demographic Assumptions
Martality Rate

Withdrawal Rate

177
6. 78N

6,78
.05

IALM (2002-14)
Liltimate

Lipto 30 years - 3%,

31 - 44 vears - 2%

45 years and above =17

Retiremnent age B0 yours
Expected Futore Cashflows
Year | 0,04
Year 2 (04
Year 3 (1,04
Year 4 01,64
Year 3 0.7
Year o 1D 0.73
0.96 -
Sensitivity Analysis
Change in As at Asat
assumptions 31 March 20240 31 March 2019
[Mscount Rate + 1% 1.54 -
- 194 203 -
Expected rate of salary inerease I 1% 203 &
- 1% 1.54 =

leaves as per the management best estimates. In linancial vear ending 3151 Mar'l9, company had closing halance of 3 5,66 millien us proviseon for

leave encashment (sick leaves & pad leuves).
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32, Leases
Compuny as lessee
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases” from 1st April 2009, which resulted in changes in sccounting policies in the fnsncial statements.

Transition

Effective 01 April 2019, the Company adopied Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard o all lease contracts existing on 01 April 2010 using the
melified retrospective (allemative [1) approach. Comparatives as at and for the year cnded 31 March 2009 have not been retrospectively adjusted,

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in reengnition of Right-of-Use asset (RO of ¥ 151,42 million (after adjustment of T .50
million against lease equalisation reserve) with # comesponding leage liability of ¥ 158,22 million, Ind AS 116 has resulted in an increase in cash
inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from finencing activities on account of lease payments,

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial spplication:

1. Applying a single discount eate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similer characteristics,

2. Applied the cxemption naot o Tecopnize right-of-use assets and labilities for leases with less than 12 months of Jease term on the date of initial
application,

3, Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-ol-use assct ot the date of initial application.

4. The company has also elected not o reassess whether & contraet ig, or containg o lewse at the date of initial application. Instead, for contracts entered
into before the transition date the company relied on its assessment made applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C to Ind AS 17, Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease,

Set oul below are the carrving anwounts of righ t-of-use assels recognised and the movements during the period: (% in millions)
For the vear ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 1 March 2019
Az at 0T April -
Additions 13142 -
Remeasurement inipact (1.50) -
Depreciation expense (30703 -
As at 31 March 119.22 -

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease labilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and

the movements during the period: (% in millions)
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Asat (1 April - -
Additions 158.22 -
Accretion of interes 1442 -
Remeasurement impact [1.543 -
Paymenis (37.82) -
As at 31 March 133.28 -
Curreal 2504 -
Mon-current 108.24 -

* The effechive mierest rate for bease labilities is 10%, with mamirity between 202 1-2026,

The following are the amounts recognised in prafit or loss: (% in millinns)
For the vear ended Fur the year cnded
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Depreciation expense of right-of-use asseis 0.7 -
Interest expense on lease liabilines 14.42 -
Expense relating to shori-tenm leases (included in other expenses) G619 -
Remensurement impact {0.04) -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 5127 -

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of £ 3782 million in 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019 2 Nil). The Company also had non-cash
additions 1o right-of~use assets of 2 151,42 million and lease labilities of % 15668 million in 31 March 2020,

ompiny has several lease contracts thal include extension and termuination options. These options are negotited i 1o provide
Sl in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company business needs, Management exerciftss
@ whether these extension and lemminution opliens arc reasonably certain to be exercised.

%\J Z/\ B -y
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Moles to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
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The company does not face o significant liguidity risk with regard 10 its lease linbilities ws the current assets are sufficient to meet the oblizations
related to lease labilities as and when they Fall due.

Rental expense recorded for shor-term léases was ¥ 6,19 million for the year ended 31 March 2020,
The aggregate depreciation on ROU assers has been included under depreciation and amonisation expense in the Statement of Frofit and Loss,
33, Related party disclosure

g, Names of reluted parties and related party relationship
Related parties where control exists

Holding Company 5 Chand And Company Limited
Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
Enterprises under same contral 1, DS Digital Pvi. Lid, 5. Nirja Publishers & Printers Pvr. Lad,
2. BPI {India) Pyt Ld. i, Vikus Publishing House Pyt Lid.
18, Chand Eduech Pyt Lid, 7. Baferi Digital Edueation Initiatives Pve, Lid,

4. Chhaya Prakashani Pyi. Lad,

Enterprisc over which KMP or their relatives 5C Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited
exercise sigimificant influence

Key manugement personne] Drinesh Kumar Thunjhnewala, Director
Himanshu Gupte, Director
Ankita Gupta, Whole Time Director
Rajagopatan Chandrashekar, Independent Director (w.e £ 07 August 20183
Shammi Manik, CED (w.e.l. 11 February 2020)
Narander Kumar, Finance Controller (w.ef 11 February 2020)

{This space hos been intentionatly feft blank)
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by Rebated party tranzactiong

T Falboing tabile pros s i o aomoent of trnstioes e e et inlo with relited parics during the perinilivea; {2 im milinns)
e aver wii
Holing | EAtermrise Er::?:i-:ug,cmrnlml Key
Pantboukar Yeur ended under same Y 1 marngerial Trdad
bkl cantrol Frusimal cootin pursomiel
sipndficond influence
Sale of boaks
Sarari Dugital Education Intiatives Privite Linited 31 Mlarch 20240 - 0,33 - - %]
31 March Hip4 - [iL 24y - - (0.24)
[0S Digital Private Ll 31 Mnrch Mo < 247 a - 597
31 March 2019 - . - -
AP {lrdia) Frivate Linsited 31 March 2020 = o3 - - 0,01
30 Muirch 2000 - E - = =
Sile of puper
ias Publishing Hougs Privage Limitzd 21 Mareh 2020 = - - - =
31 March 2012 - .00 - - (4,001
|tizeelinmenms Income
5 Uhond Edwtech Privas Limiled 31 March 20210 = 242 - - 242
31 March 2000 - [ThE6) - - (IAs)
Purchose of boaks
P {Indis) Prvate Limited 31 March 220 . - - - -
AT March X109 - AELIHHY - - Ty
Mirta Publishers & Prinrers Private Limited 31 March 2030 & - i i
31 Mageh 200% - 14.72) - & {72
Wikas Publicting House Priva Limitod 31 March 2030 - 13 = . 8%
3¢ March 079 - [17.54) - & 117.84)
Jub Work- Binding & Frinting
5 Chamd And Coenpary Limited A1 Mareh H120 2065 - - * LGS
31 March 2019 - - - - -
igin Publishers & Prenters Private Limibed 31 March 2021 - VEx] - . .52
3 Maorch 2019 . (12148 - - (121
ikns Pubdishing Honse Private Limited 31 March 2020 . 56,75 - - 56.78
3| March 2009 - {122 .06) - - {EX2.0m)
Frinting Charges Paid
Hitja Publishers & Prinsess Privase Linibed 31 March 2020 + = - = .
3| Murch 2019 - 10.33) = - {033}
| Stalf wellary evpenmes
150 Hesel Tourist Delste Private Limdled 31 March 2020 . = a,16 5 1811
31 Mureh 21619 A - i1 38} - ﬁt.ﬂ_tl1
Tour & Travel Expenses
SC Hoe! Towrst Deluxe Private Limiled 31 March 2020 . - 4 - a4
31 Manch 20]w - - {1.35) - {035}
License Fee (QR Code)
Sathri Digital Edvcaton Inifistives Private Limited 31 March 2020 . 56K - ] i
31 March 29 - [4.10) - . .10
Legal ond professional [incl Shared Services)
Saferi Digital Edueation Initlanves Private Limited 31 March 2020 - il - - kL)
31 Mreh 2009 = {T.08) 2 F {T.0%)
S Chand And Company Laniled 31 March 2020 2420 - - - 0.0
31 March 20070 (2177} - - - (2T
Hovaliy paid
[T {India) Privaie Lonated F1 Mirch 2030 - - - * -
31 March Mi19 . AU - - (R0
Enlerest on Delenture
5 Chand Ard Company Linsed 31 Mmch 2020 = . - "
31 March 2014 {17.95) - - (27054
!'lliuhmt i Term Loan
5 Chand Anid Company Limied 31 Warch 20 4,75 . - 4.7%
31 March Hpy 271 . . . 371
Mirja Publishers & Pricters Privote Limited 31 March 2020 . 402 & . 4.02
31 March 20 . i1.75] - - 1175y
Chivaya Prakashani Privase Limired 31 March 2020 - 394 E 304
31 Marsh 2019 - - . . -
e | R X TS — = =
S0 Hobe] Tourisn Deluxe Private Limited A1 March 2024 - - 10 1 . (IN LT
31 March M9 =) 411047 - (LR R4
Anksn Gunta 11 Maorch 200 . - - LR [FE]
3 harch 201% - = . {045} 1045y
Other expenses paid (refmbursensenry
5 Chund And Campiny Limdled 31 March 2020 035 - - . BHs
3b March 2004 -1 - - - [ ETE
Andkita Gupis 31 Mlarch 2020 . - - k.04 (had
31 March Jots = - - 111,55 (.58
Loan uvailed during the year
Mirja Pubdishers & Printess Prvase Lisnited 31 Murch 2020 = RELT) = 00
31 Mbarch 2019 - LT HE) = - (A
A Chand And Campuny Linited 31 Manch 20240 125,00 - - - 12500
3E Morch 2000 (25.00) - = =) = [X5.00)
Chlyn Prafashurt Privare Limand 31 March 2030 . 71.50 T = .20
21 Mareh 2019 . ‘,/{*ES@\:\\ : 2
7R 4
Loan repaid during the year /rf P ol | %ﬁ\ ﬁ
irju Publishers & Printers Private Limised 31 March 2020 - . 1] i - 1 —
31 March 2018 3 iasoml il & ':, New D?lh'_j o (r
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1¥ in miillings)
Eni avir whi
Helding . g :C:E:'lim:;::dl Key
Purlkculur Year ended umler same ¥; 3 imataperial Tnlal
congny Persannel exercise
cndiirol : persnami]
significant influence
Emplovee stock optlon expoige
5 Chznd And Comipany Limitd 31 Manch 203 - - H - -
11 March 2004 {it. 14 . " £ (14
THEector remmumeration
Ankima Ciugan 31 March 2020 - - - 409 469
51 March 2015 E 2 = {207 203
Direcior Sitting Fee
Anal Wighal 31 March 2020 - - . - -
31 Muarch 2009 - - - L) {03
Archmma Capoor 31 March 20020 - - - - -
¥1 March 219 . - - = &
Razagopatin Chandrushekar 1 March 2020 - - . 0.03 .03
31 March 202 - - - [LARTER] (L IEH]
Sangay Gujml 31 March 220 - - - - -
31 Maorch 2115 - - - [{EE1KH] 10,033
|Remunration of KX1F*
Shamm: Kanik 31 Morch 2020 - . - &0 LA
F1 Murch 2019 2 . - a7 {967
| Marznden Eansn 31 hderch 20340 - - - 250 1.50
31 Mareh 2009 - = - 12.08) (2.98)
“lneluding perguissics pasd dursng the full year foeyoar ended March 31, 2020
Dutstunding halonee a5 st the vear vl 1% in millions)
Halding | Eoererie ‘lﬂﬁ;’fﬁ:ﬁ“ Ker
Parhicular Yiear ended ¥ under sans L managerial Total
campany Persnmngl exercise
comirol persanmel
slgnificant infMeence
Trade payahle
& Chand And Compesiy Limirsd 31 March 2000 (R - - - BAER
3] March 2% {20.14) - - . {20.09)
Winja [Mahlzalicrs & Printers Privade Limited 31 Mareh 2020 1- 13.44 = . 1344
31 Mureh 2ty - [1792) - - 117,92y
Vikas publishirg House Private Limied 31 Mageh 2020 . 173,71 - . 175,71
31 Mureh 2 s {232.08) = E [2Z32.015)
Safari Digit] Education Initistives Privoee Limieed 31 March M - 333 = - 535
31 Murch 2019 - [2.13) - - [EN R
B0 Festel Touris: Dubane Brivale Limired 31 March 2020 . - (] |
31 Munch 2019 - - 0 - ({01}
|Enlary Receivahle
Aniila Cripea 31 March 2068 - = - 1.73 1.73
31 harch 2009 - - {1.885 1,58y
Trade receivable
5. Chand Edueech Privale Limad 31 March 2020 - 1.x2 - - 322
30 March 2014 . 1k 5 - g {0}
S0 Honel Tounsl Deluze Private Limied 30 March 2020 - - . 2 -
31 Morch 201% - - - - -
Saker Digital Edneation Initialves Private Limited 31 March 2020 - .56 - - [FE1
31 March 201% - 033 - (k23]
IS Dighial Private Limined 31 March 200 - 535 . - 535
31 Mareh 2019 - - = = &
Laans & advances bo related partics
DU Dhgital Privane Limited A1 March 2020 - A2 - . 0,52
e — s RS —- 1T [ = |}
BEI {Indazp Prvage Lemiead 31 March M2 - L8 ) - - 12
31 March Xi1% - [{LOR)Y = = (LAl
Loans & silvances o KMP
| Shamme Wik &1 Iviarch 2024 - - . el LR}
31 March 2009 - - 11,1573 (1]
Security deposit
S0 Himel Towrisr Diluns Private Limiled 31 March 2004 . . E. 4.2
31 Wharch 9 - 14,30 - (.20}
Anki Gupia 31 Maruh 2020 = - (L] (8¢
31 March HH9 - - - 0. 1%) {U.1%)
SEivrt torm kaan
Mirja Publishers & Printers Posate Liniled 31 March 2020 - A1
31 March 2010 = [N T]
Chibazes Prahslsmi Private Linsiicd A March 2020 730
31 Mupch 2009 . -
5 U hanad And Congpany Limsed 31 March 2000 1500 -
31 Margh 2019 [25.00) =
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Interest acerived and due on harrmnings

Hirjo Publisherd & Prinsers Private Linited 31 March 2030 a7
31 Mageli 2019 - 1130

Cliberys Prakastan) Private Limited 31 Marcly 2020 - 154
31 Masch 29 -

5 Chanif Al Conegumy Limiled 31 March 320 a47 -
31 Mlarch 200 0. 200 -

{Freiires in brackets et |Ih.'k‘iu1.|:. wear figurnes)
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Motes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
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F. Details of dovs fo micro, small and medivm enterprises 2 defined under the MISVED Act, 2006
{2 in millinns)

Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
The principal amoun: and the interest due thereon (1o be shown separately) remaining wipaid to any supplicr as at the
end of cach acoounting year
- Principal ameiunt due fo micro and small enierprises 2204 23435
- Interest dus on above . a
114 2343

The amount of inferest paid by the Buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2046 afong with the amounis of e
1 pyment made o the supplice beyond the appoimted duy during cach zccounting year,

The ameunt of inferest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond - -
the appointed day during the year) bul without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Ast 2006,

The amount of further interost renmining duc and payable cven in the succeeding vear, until such date when the - =
intercst dues as above are aetelly paid o e small enterprisc for the purpese of disallowance as 8 deductible
expenditure under section 23 af the MSMED Act 2006

35, Unhedged foreign currency exposure

This ameunt of foreign ewrrency exposun: thut are not hedged by derivative instrument or otherwise a5 on 31 Marel 2020 und 31 March 2019 are aq unders:
Amount in foreign currency (% in millions)

Particulur :‘um]gn
ey Muarch 31,2020 March 31,2019 March 31,2020 Mareh 31, 2019
Trade Recervables UsD X2 578 32102 1.70 2.23
Exchange Rate used per USD 7333 69.32
36, Expenditure in foreign currency (nccrual basis)
(% in millions)
Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Advertising and sales prometion 206 4.1
2006 4.01
3. Earnings in foreign currency
(% In millions)
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Exports of F.0.B Value (.31 1.0
i1 LG
8. Tmported and indigenous raw materials consumed
Percentage (%) (% in millions)
Raw Materials -
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2009 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
— AR e e e o 05 « =
Indigenous {C 1 | Dy 164, 16 23381

39, Segment reporting

The Company haz only one reportable business scgment, which is publishing of books and eperates in a single business scement based on the namre of the
services, the risk and returns, the organizstion siructure and the intemal financial reporting systems. Accerdingly, the smeunt: appearing in the financial
stazements relate 1o the Company’s single business segment,

40. Corporate Socinl Hesponsibility (CSR)}
(% in millions)
Muarch 31, 20019
2.04
175

_Mareh 31, 24
i
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41, significant customer

42,

The Company docs nol have any significanl customer for the vear ended 31 March 2020 {Also there was no significant custome having sales
agereganing to 10% of wal revenue for the year cnded 31 March 2009

Financial lnstrumentss- Financisl risk management ohjectives and policies

The Company's principal financial labilites, other than denvatives, comprise loons and borcowings, eade and other payables, and fnancial guarantes
contracts. The main purpose of these faaneial labilites 15 10 finonce the Group’s operations and 1o provide puaranices to suppor is operations. The
Company’s principal financial assets incliede loans, rade receivables, and cash and cash equivalenis that derive directly from its operations.

Tl Company 15 exposed o market risk, eredit risk and liguidity nsk. The Conpany’s senior management overseas e management of these risks and
idvises om financial risks and the appropriste financial sk governance framework for the Company. The board provides assurance to the shereholder's
that the Company’s financial risk activities are geverned by appropriate policies and procedures amd it financial nsks are identified, measured and
mianaged in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objeetives. The Board of Direcior reviews and agrees policies for matnging encl of these
risks, which are summarized helow,

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair vilue of futuee cash Dows of @ financial imstrument will flaciuate because of changes in market prices.

Market sk compniges three types of nisk:-

a1 Interest tte nsk,

b} currency sk and other price sk, suclas eguiny price risk end

.} commodity risk,

Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, investments, deposits, advances nmd decivative finaneisl instruments,

“The sensitivity analyscs if the following seciions refate to the position as st 31 March 2020 amd 31 March 2019,

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the hosis (hat the smount of net debt, the rano of Hoatng 1o fixed micrest rates of the debt and derivatives
and the proportion of Arancial nstruments in foreign currencies are all constant in place 2t 51 March 2020

The analyses exclude the impact of mevements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratity 2nd other post-rotrement obligations; provisioos.
The sensitivily of the relavant profit or less fiem i# the effect of the assumed changes in respective market fisks.

. Inderest rate risk.

Interest rare sk s the risk tar the Gur value or fumre cash Tows of a fnancial mstrument will Meciuaie beeouse of changes in marke? infered rates, The
Cornpany’s caposure to the risk of changes in market inferest rres relates primarily o the Company’s long-term debt obligations with fixed inlerest rates.

The follewing 1able demonsirales the sensitivity to a reasonably passible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, afier
the impact of hedwe accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s prafit befiore tax is affected through the impact on floating rae
bermowings, as follows:

(¥ in millinns)

Increasedecrease in+ Effect on profit Effect on equity

hasis puints before tax {(OCT)
As ot March 31, 2020
MR Bamowings ={1.5%: 250 -
<0.5% 21.50) a
As at March 31, 201%
IME Bonowings H5% 2.21 ¥
0.5% (2.21) -

Foreign currency risk e

Foreign currency nisk is the nisk that the fair value or fture cash Dows of an exposure will fluctuaie because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Lompany’s exposure t the risk of changes in foreimm exchange rates relates prinvarily 1o the Company’s operating sctivities (when revenus or expense is
denominated in a foreign currency),

The company does not hedge its foreign currency exposure, however he sensilivity analysis 15 given as below for the currencies: in which Company has
limeign exposurs:
A% in millivns)
Changes in foreign Effect on profit Effect on equity

carrency roles before tax (O
or the year ended March 31, 2020 +5% 0,08 -
-Gt (RG] x

W vear ended March 31, 20019
i =

i0.11) =
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B. Credir Risk
Credit nizk 15 the risk that couterparty will not meet its obligations undes o financial instrument or customer contract, leading to 1 financinl Joss, The Company
is mat exposed to any significant credit risk from its operating activites {primanly rade recevables), including deposits with banks and financial instinfiens,
torezgn exchange tansactions und other finuncial instuments,

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (mef) a5 of the reporting date is as follaws: (% in millions)
Agpe Bracket Mot Due 0215 Days 216-368 Days 3ih - T30 Days  Mlore than 730 Days Tutal

Asat 31 March 2019 s, 64 57,08 12237 1343 157 4T1.449
As at 31 March 2020 424,30 20,66 11528 6217 2038 658,79

C. Ligukdity Risk

Liquidity risk s the risk that the company will encounter difficully in meeting the obligations sssociated with its Gnuncial lubilities that are settled by dalivening
cash or another financinl nsset. The Company’s objective s o maintain a balance between continuity of Funding and fexibility through the uwse of bank
everdralls, and bank loans, The company’s approach to managing guiding ie ensure | as far as possible, that it will have sullicient ligquidity to meet its liability
when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, withow mcwring unaeceptable losses or risking demage to the Company's reputation. The
Company closely moitor its liquidity pesition and deploys a rebust eash management system. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequare
reserves, bomowing Habilitles, by continususly monitering forecast and aewal cash fows, profile of financial assets and labilities. It maintin sdeguate sources
af financing including loans from banks at an optimized cost. The table below provides the details regacding contractual maturities of Anancial Habilities.

T i millinns)

As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

O Demand
- Barrowings 271.59 127.1%

270,50 127.19
Less than 1 year
= Borrowings 179.31 24737
= Trade payvables 497,55 0,92
- Oler financial liabilites 23445 87.4%

21131 941,77
More than 1 vear
= Diiher finmacial Labilities - 6.82

43. Capital mansgement

For Ihe purpose of the Company's eaparal management. capital includes issued equity coptial and all ather equity reserves antribunable to the equity holder of the
campany. The primary objective of the Company™s capital management is to maximise the shareholder valee

The Company secks to maintain a halance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantuges and szeurify
afferded by a sound capital position. The primary ohjective of the company's capital mnnugement is to inaximise the shareholder value.

The Company monilor capital using a geaning ratio, which is net debr divided by toral capital plus mel debt. The Company’s policy is 1o keep the gearing ratio
less than 0%, The Company measures underlying nel debt s izl liabilities, comprising interest hearing toans and borowings. excluding any duies o
subsidiaries or group compunies less cash and cash equivalents. For the purpose of capital management, 1otal capital inchades issued equity equily capitul, share
pretrium and all other reserves attributable 1o the equity holder of the Company, as applicable.

Company's adjusted net debi (o equity miio as a0 21 March 2020 is as folkow: (% In millions)
Gearing Ratio ARAR ARl

= = — Mapch 3. 2020 March 31, 2019
Borrowings (MNote 11A, 11B & 13) {including current maturitics) 5111 IR1.66
Lus: cosh and cash equivalents (Mate 5C) [3.43) (40,02}
Aunfjusted Mot debt (A 247.68 341,04
Exuity 0147 2798
Total equily {B) 0147 727.9%
Total equity and net debt [C = (A+B)) 449,15 1,069.63
Gearing Ratio {A/C) 55 14% 3.84%

fo achieve this overall objective, the Company®s capita] management, amongst other things, aines 10 ensstre thot it meets financial eovenants attached-tn -
crofbearing loans and borrowings that define copitul stucture requirements. Breaches in meeting the finsncial covennnts would permit =,

U
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44, Fuir value of financial assets und lishilitics

St onl below. s o comparson by class of the camying amouns and fair value of the company's financials instruments, othier than thoss with carrving amounts thar
are reasonible approxinations of i values:
(% in millionz)

March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Amortized  pvrpL  pyvrocn MmOtz Lo pviocr
Cost Cnst
Assers
MNon Current Financial Assets
- Loans 138 - c’ 1237 a -
- Dther financial nssets oo . = TN
Current Financial assets
- Lusamns 20028 = - 32 - £
Liabilitics
Non Corrent Financial Habilites
= Borrowings 271.59 - - 12719
Current Finaneial labiliries
- Borrowmgs 179,31 - - 247.37 = -
= Chher financial liabilisics 101,17 x w 47.4% 3 G

The following assumptions! nethods were used to estimate the fair values:

The falr valyes of trade receivables. cagh and cash cquivalents, other current naneial asscts, trade pavable and other correns fnancial liabilities are considered 1o
be same a5 their corying values due 10 their shon term nature

Quantitative disclosures fair value measirement heirarchy for assels as at March 31, 2020 (% in milkions}
Fair value measurement using

Qouted price  Significant Significant

in netive phservable ubabservable
market inputs inpuis
{Level 1) [Level 2) {Level 3)
Assets measured al Fair value
I HE - - 2366
Other financiat assets . - 010
Liabilities mensured at tair value
Borrowings = - 450490
Other fimancial liabilities - - 16117
Quantitative disclosures falr value mensurement helrarchy for assots as at March 31, 2019 (¥ in milliens)

Fair value measarement using
Coited price Significant Significant

in active ubservable nhbobservable

market mpuis inputs

{Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Assels measwred at falr value
Louns - - 4260
Othar Froneinlassets B — - . 0.0
Liabilities measured at fair value
Bormowings : . 374.56
ker financial labilitics - - £7.48

45, Employee stock compensation
In 2012, the ultinete holding company instituied the ESOP Scheme 2012 (he “ESOP 20127, Under the ESOP plan. the committee may grint awards of equity
bazed stock opliens being Growth aptions 1o the employess of ullime bolding company and its subsidisnies. As per the [ndian Accounting Standard {Ind AS)
102 “Shure based paymens™. the Company receiving the services shall measure the services recerved s an equity seitied transaction and required o record
compensation cost and disclose information relating 1o the shares granied 10 the employees of the Compiny, under (e above Flan, Since, the plan is assessed,
manzged and aduumstered by the ultimate holding company, the Company has taken stock Gption ¢ost pertaing to options granted 1o the employee of the
Company s caleolated By the ultingte holding Company under Ind AS 102, -
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46. The Holding Company renders vanous adinistrative and manngement services 1o its subsidiary comapanies fo feilitate the ditytiseiliy operations. Accordingly,
the ultimate holding Company has charged T 20.20 million (31 March 2001% 2 21,77 million) 1owards such services rendered during the year ended Mareh 31,
2020,

47, Impuct of COVID -19

The outbreak of Coronavins (COVID-19) pandemic globully is esusing o slowdown in economic activity including Indie. This svent bas significanily effected
seonomic activities and the fmpact of coroninars on our business will depend on future developments tha cunne be reliably predicred, Post the outhreak, cerfain
premises (including warchouse) of the Compeny and thind party fused fior job work parposes) have been closed since March 22, 2020, however, ellective May 08,
2020, operations have commenced i a phased manner as per the directives from the governmen

In develaping the sssumptions relating to possible uncertainties m the business conditions beeause of the pandemic, the Company, s on the date of approvil of
these financials results have used vinoble mformation as available and considered the possible effects that may result from COVID-1% an the camying smount of
i asseis oo assedsing counterparty cradit risk in case of fnmeial assets {comprising cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits} and subsequent recoveres,
pust trends, eredit risks profile of enstomers in cose of wade receivables ond advances to vendors. The company expects to recover the cirrying amount of the
assets. The Company while assessing Right to Use Aseet, has constdered past trend, future business projections, performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions
used and based on current estimates expects the camying amount of other assels will be recovered and does not foreses either significant dowmn-sizing in the
eperetions or any changes in bease terms.

As at the bafance sheet date, the Company has evaluated the impact of COVID 19 on its financial resolts. The impact of COVITE 1% may differ from that estirmaned
as at the date of approval of these fnancial staements. There have heen o material chanzes in the controls or processes [ollowed in the Minancial stalements
tlosing process of the company, The company will continue te moniter any future changes to the husiness and Onancial staicments dye 1o COVIR-19,

The management, based on its current amd futire business plans, afier consldering COVID 19 impact, has sssessed that the Company's ability (o meet ils
contrastual obligations and labilitics that fall due in noar futuee including repayment of the debts taken from banks ¢ financiel instituriona and their related
covenants, 1§ dependent upon tGimely reafization of debors collections. The monazement hag assessed that it will be able to realize the colloctions on timely basis
despite COVID 19 challenges and would be able to arrange sufficient wirking capital facilities from banks: financial injuitions, if required, 1o ensure continuity of
operations. The management has availed morstorium offered by banks during the month of Apr-Nay Mt manzge cash fows,

The Company as part of its palicy performs physical verification of inventory bi-annually in Septewber and March every year, Accordingly. the management, hod
curmted out physical verification of inventory a5 at September 30, 2019, however, as at March 11, 2020, due to trovel resiriclions on seeount of COVIT-19 and
duc to significant busmess activities subsequent to year-end m the post-lock down period, the management could not perform physical count of invendory as at
March 1. 2020 shrough to the date of approval of these financial statements. The munagement has, therefore, relied upon the inventary count reflected in ins
books of accounts, which is the balancing figure for the apening. purchases and the inventory consumed © sold during the finencial vear, The management intends
to complete the physical venfiestion process in the subsequent gquarter und doesn’t expect uny significant impact which could arise on completion of this process.

48, Previous year figures have been regrouped” reclassified, where necessary, 10 conform o this vear's chissification

The accompanying notes are 2 integral part of the finneial statements,
A per our report of even date F
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